Los Angeles County Sheriff Civilian Oversight Commission

MEETING MINUTES

November 20, 2025 | 9a.m.—1 p.m.
St. Anne’s Conference and Event Center

AGENDA ITEMS:

2
3

4

NOo¥x G

CALL TO ORDER
Chair Hans Johnson called the meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT RULES
ROLL CALL
Commissioners Present:
Arthur Calloway I, Co-Vice Chair, arrived at 9:18 a.m.
Irma Cooper
Luis S. Garcia, Co-Vice Chair
Patricia Giggans
James P. Harris
Jamon Hicks
Hans Johnson, Chair
George Newhouse, arrived at 9:38 a.m.
(Vacant)
Eight Commissioners were present, constituting a quorum.
Agency Representatives Present:
e Sheriff Robert Luna, LA County Sheriff’s Department (LASD)
e Asst. Sheriff Paula Tokar (LASD)
e Inspector General Max Huntsman, LA County Office of Inspector General (OIG)
e Janssen Diaz, Senior Deputy, LA County Office of County Counsel (CoCo)
Commission Staff Present:
e Sharmaine Moseley, Executive Director (ED)
e Bikila Ochoa, Deputy Executive Director (DED)
e Tracy Jordan, Principal Staff Analyst
e Robert Flores, Community Services Coordinator
CONSENT CALENDAR
MOTION:
Commissioner Harris moved for the Commission to approve the September 18, 2025 Meeting
Minutes on the consent calendar. Commissioner Cooper seconded the motion.
VOICE VOTE:
e 7 Ayes: Vice Chair Calloway, Commissioner Cooper, Vice Chair Garcia, Commissioner
Giggans, Commissioner Harris, Commissioner Hicks, Chair Johnson
e 0 Nays
e 0 Abstentions
e 1 Absent — Commissioner Newhouse arrived to the meeting after the vote.
FAMILY IMPACT REMARKS: None
NOTE: ITEM 6 APPEARS AFTER ITEM 8B
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None
NEW BUSINESS: Report on the 2025 Annual NACOLE Conference
Chair Johnson, Vice Chair Calloway, Commissioner Harris and Executive Director Moseley
attended the 2025 NACOLE Conference in Minneapolis, Minnesota, the city where a police officer
was convicted of murdering George Floyd five years ago.

ORNNNNNNNN

9:19

=
=
N
~

12:24
12:41


https://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/bos/commissionpublications/agenda/1196126_November20_2025MeetingAgenda.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2y8Tw46De5w&t=1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2y8Tw46De5w&t=1s
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=283
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=504
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=559
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=687
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=744
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=761

8B

Commissioner Harris said that the NACOLE conference provided him an opportunity to hear from
fellow oversight professionals about their struggles and successes. He added that it was beneficial
for the Commissioners to “know we’re not alone in this.”

Chair Johnson shared that it was important to hear from the Minnesota Attorney General about
how the George Floyd-related murder prosecutions built on previous efforts over the past three
decades to prosecute brutality and out-of-policy violence. He said that Derek Chauvin didn’t
even rank among top 10 police officers in the city with the most complaints, underscoring the
importance of assessing patterns of brutality and ensure accountability. He added that
conference attendees spoke of a “war on oversight” in Ohio, Florida, Tennessee, and other
jurisdictions. He noted that the Commission itself had to “fend off efforts to put a muzzle on our
own oversight ability.” He suggested that the Commission must reckon with the chilling effect
of a federal administration hostile to oversight and accountability. He added that enhanced
resources can create opportunities for best practices, such as mediation capacity, trust-building
and leadership development within the community. He said that the Commission needs to
develop a policy on Al, and he’ll take the lead as chair of the Commission’s technology
committee.

Executive Director Moseley noted that the visit to George Floyd Square “reminds us of why we
do this work and how difficult this work this,” as well as the urgent need for accountability,
transparency, and effective oversight. She reported that while the Commission has 10 budgeted
staff, New York’s Civilian Complaints Review Board (CCRB) has about 150 staff, several
conducting community engagement. She directed the Commission’s community engagement
coordinator to connect with his New York counterpart to discuss best practices. She suggested
that the Commission look into the “Blue Envelope Program,” which has helped law enforcement
in various cities identify drivers with autism, anxiety, etc. during traffic stops, and determine
whether additional support is needed.

Commissioner Garcia mentioned gang intervention practices by the City of LA and underscored
the need for more community engagement and to elevate the work being done by the
Commission. He also suggested that the Commission make a presentation at the next NACOLE
conference about the need to improve correctional health services.

Commissioner Calloway provided details about his Al concerns, noting one Al model being
designed to file the first draft of police reports has been proven inconsistent at distinguishing
among diverse people, yet the manufacturer still plans to release the software.

NEW BUSINESS: Update on LASD Compliance with the Rutherford Settlement & Related 45:09
Oversight Efforts

LASD Custody Operations Asst. Sheriff Paula Tokar provided an overview of the Rutherford
Settlement intended to address jail conditions and overcrowding. The County has been found
“substantially compliant” in 24 out of 28 months (since June 2023). The LASD has developed
technological solutions to better track wait times; increased and maintained critical staffing; and
expedited the movement of people out of County jails.

LA County DOJ Chief Compliance Officer Maggie Carter reported that the LASD has been looking ~ 53:05
for ways to reduce the jail population and to treat people in the community when it is safe to do
so. There were efforts to shorten the times people are chained to the “front bench” of the Inmate
Reception Center (IRC) and confined in holding cells. Since the jail population now has a large
percentage of people with mental illness, the County needs to keep adapting to accommodate
their needs. Transfers to state prison are more efficient and fewer people deemed incompetent
to stand trial are staying at County jails until a state hospital bed is available for them.

There are some challenging fundamentals that still need to be worked on every day, but the 1:05:20
County and the public and the Department should rightfully be very proud of the results of their
work.

Meeting Minutes Los Angeles County Sheriff Civilian Oversight Commission Page 2 of 6


https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=2709
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=3185
https://www.youtube.com/watch?t=3920&v=2y8Tw46De5w&feature=youtu.be

Asst. Sheriff Tokar reported that challenges for maintaining compliance include the increasing jail
population, including more than 1,000 people in custody on Prop 36 charges. There is a mismatch
between the need for specialty mental health housing and the growing mental health population.

There is over 49% of people in custody are receiving some form of mental health treatment.
LOS ANGELES COUNTY SHERIFF’S UPDATE

Chair Johnson took this item out of order as Sheriff Luna arrived late to the meeting, having
provided support to the Alhambra Police Department, which just had lost a young officer on
duty. Sheriff Luna reported:

e Part 1 crimes are down 11.7%. Of these, violent crime is down 3.8%, while property crime

is down 13.6%

e The LASD helped ensure the safety of West Hollywood’s Halloween Street Carnival. He said
there is legitimate concern for the LGBTQ community, though there were no specific threats.
e The LASD staged personnel across the County to ensure Dodger World Series celebrations
were safe. He said the LASD responded to the few instances of unruly celebrations, and there

were no reports of businesses being vandalized or looted.

e The LASD has 20 active meet-and-confers with labor partners, including about deputy

cliques.
DISCUSSION:

e Chair Johnson asked for additional details on the meet and confers. Sheriff Luna responded
the meet and confers consisted of body-worn cameras in the jails (the LASD now has body-
worn cameras in three of its seven custody facilities); deputy cliques policy, use of force
policy, and taser policy (the LASD has seen a more-than-50% reduction in deputy involved

shootings as tasers are increasingly used for de-escalation).

e Commissioner Newhouse reported that he recently toured Men’s Central Jail (MCJ) and
commended the Sheriff and his custody staff. He stated that “We’re not where we need to

be, but it looks like we’re headed in the right direction.”

e Commissioner Garcia, who went on the same tour, acknowledged improvements and noted
that commissary prices are high. He reported his observations about safety checks and
inquired about the role of correctional health services at the jail. He said, “l acknowledge
that work still needs to be done but | am also trying to celebrate the wins.” Sheriff Luna
acknowledged the issue with commissary prices and added MCJ also continues to have

issues with maintenance.

e Chair Johnson asked about the uptick in deaths in custody, including the recent deaths of a
trans inmate. Sheriff Luna responded that the death of any people in his care is a tragedy.
The current total for 2025 is 41. He said that the LASD is transparent about such statistics,
posting them on its website He shared that that there is a significant review process with
any death. He added the particular death mentioned by Chair Johnson has initially been
ruled a suicide but remains under investigation “because we have to make sure that’s the

case.”

e Chair Johnson asked if Sheriff Luna heard about the Palmdale Sheriff’s station undermining
its Community Advisory Committee (CAC). Sheriff Luna replied he was not aware but would
make inquiries. He said compliance monitors have been complimentary about the Palmdale

Sheriff’s station’s efforts to comply with the Antelope Valley settlement.

e Commissioner Cooper provided a comment regarding concerns made by families of inmates
about how it can take weeks for them to get treatment. Commissioner Garcia also expressed
concern about a decline in opioid treatments and shortage of medical evaluations. Sheriff

Luna said he will discuss this matter with Correctional Health Services.
PUBLIC COMMENT:

Meeting Minutes Los Angeles County Sheriff Civilian Oversight Commission

2:07:13

Page 3 of 6


https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=3960
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=5581
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=6077
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=7633

e Eric Miller of the Sybil Brand Commission (SBC) shared that SBC inspections found that there
are still serious issues at the inmate reception center.

e Vanessa Perez commented that some deputies who beat her son were members of the
Industry Indians.

e Cindy Nunez commented that policies are meaningless without enforcement and asked
about accountability for deputy gangs.

e Anthony Arenas questioned the LASD’s report of compliance, noting it has the highest rate
of in-custody deaths over the last 20 years. He urged against investing hundreds of millions
on “decrepit” MClJ.

e Deanna Brock commented that the LASD’s civil settlement costs related to excessive uses
force are shameful and should be invested toward mental healthcare for incarcerated
people instead.

e Marcela Rosen asked why investigations into excessive uses of force and deputy gangs
“never result in anyone being fired.”

e Melissa Camacho, one of the ACLU’s lead attorneys on the Rutherford litigation, commented
that compliance and progress has been “fantastic” but funding for diversion programs needs
to be increased.

e Sahara White commented that her loved one, Quinten Thomas, was killed in Twin Towers in
2018. She also called for investing in diversion programs.

e Sunitha Menon, with the County’s LGBTQ+ Commission, commented that they recently
established an ad hoc to review the justice-involved departments and commissions that
interact with LGBTQ+ people and looks forward to collaborating with the Commission and
the LASD.

e Yusef Miller commented that we “cannot arrest our way out of mental health” and called
for more diversion programs.

RECESS

N
)
0o
w
N

U
e
S
©

8C NEW BUSINESS: Ongoing Training for Commissioners: Discussion & Approval of the Ongoing 2:

Training Program for Commissioners
Chair Johnson provided an overview of the ongoing training program for Commissioners.
MOTION
Commissioner Newhouse moved for the Commission to approve the training program.
Commissioner Hicks seconded the motion. Chair Johnson mentioned that Commissioner
Harris stepped out briefly and was not present for this vote.
VOICE VOTE:
e 7 Ayes: Calloway, Cooper, Garcia, Giggans, Hicks, Johnson, Newhouse
e 0 Nays
e 0 Abstention

8D NEW BUSINESS: LASD Presentation on Virtual Deputy Program 2:54:53

e Palmdale Station Operations Captain Joshua Bardon provided an overview of the LASD’s new
Virtual Deputy Program.
e |t was reported that 1,000 submissions made via the virtual deputy system for identity theft,
vehicle theft, burglaries, and vandalism. The program resulted in cost savings (particularly on
vehicle maintenance and fuel) because deputies no longer must drive out to take every
complaint.
DISCUSSION 2:58:24

e There were no questions about the program, but Chair Johnson asked whether CAC
members have been sidelined by the Palmdale Sheriff’s Station.
e Capt. Bardon said he wasn’t aware of any such actions.

Meeting Minutes Los Angeles County Sheriff Civilian Oversight Commission Page 4 of 6


https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=8926
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=10249
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=10451
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=11424

8E

8F

9A

10A
9B

PUBLIC COMMENT

T. Carter said the Commission is biased in its treatment of him.
NEW BUSINESS: DPH OVP’s Semi-Annual Report on the Family Assistance Program (FAP)
LA County Dept. of Public Health (DPH)’s Office of Violence Prevention (OVP) Clinical Social Work
Supervisor Linda Reyna provided a one-year report on the Family Assistance Program (FAP). She
acknowledged the Commission’s major role in setting the stage for the establishment of the FAP.
She noted that from February 2024 to January 2025, FAP has received 55 death notifications, and
51 families have received FAP services, including counseling, system navigation, case
management, and linkages to community resources. Meanwhile, 39 families have received
funeral assistance at a cost of $209,000.
DISCUSSION

e Commissioner Giggans said the FAP is one of the Commission’s “offspring” along with MET.

e Chair Johnson said he may invite the OVP back to a future meeting.

NEW BUSINESS: U.S. District Court Ruling on g on Maya Lau vs LA County, Villanueva,
Murakami and Lillienfeld

Chair Johnson reported that a federal judge recently ruled that former LA Times journalist Maya
Lau plausibly alleged that the County violated her constitutional rights when former Sheriff Alex
Villanueva criminally investigated her for reporting on police misconduct. He said this ruling is
important in the respect and protection of press freedom.

CHAIR’S REPORT

Chair Johnson noted the passage of AB 847 as a significant milestone for advancing civilian
oversight of sheriff and police departments in California, reinforcing transparency and
accountability while safeguarding confidentiality. He added that 10 days after AB 847 passed, the
president of the Association of Los Angeles Deputy Sheriffs (ALADS) sent a formal letter to the
Board of Supervisors and the County CEO, demanding to negotiate AB 847’s impact on ALADS’
membership. Responding to a question from Commissioner Giggans about what ALADS is trying
to accomplish, Chair Johnson said this is likely an effort to mitigate the effects of AB 847. He said
it was a “shot across the bow even before the effective date of the legislation on January 1, 2026.
Commissioner Newhouse said the ALADS letter is clearly designed to generate a delay in the
Commission’s implementation of its subpoena power pursuant to AB 847. He believes AB 847 will
potentially be subject to legal challenges.

INSPECTOR GENERAL’S REPORT: None

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Executive Director Moseley reported:

o More Commissioners have access to their Commission email.

e The Commission held a special training entitled “Analysis of Deputy-Involved Hit and Non-
Hit Shooting Incidents, which was open to the public, and included subject matter experts
from the Sheriff's Department, Los Angeles County District Attorney and LA County Medical
Examiner. Following the training, the Medical Examiner invited Commissioners to visit the
Medical Examiner’s office so that the Commission can get an even better understanding of
the role of the Medical Examiner.

Meeting Minutes Los Angeles County Sheriff Civilian Oversight Commission

&
[y
&
o
0o

w
[y
Ul
Ul
\e]

Page 5of 6


https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=11641
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=11758
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=12397
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=12584
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=12939
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=13351

e County Counsel will be asked to provide the Commission at an upcoming Commission 3:42:42
meeting a training on recent changes to the Brown Act
e A February 12 Commissioner Networking Summit hosted by the Board Executive Office will
tackle Brown Act changes, onboarding, mandatory trainings, etc.
o The Executive Office (EO) of the Board of Supervisors notified its staff that, after recent
Board-approved curtailments, the EO still has a budget shortfall of $1.5 million. Therefore,
additional curtailments will be considered.
Executive Director Moseley also provided Commissioners with a list of community engagement
activities that the Commission and staff participated in since the last meeting.
9 PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE CHAIR’S AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORTS 3:46:44
A&B e Vanessa Perezis concerned that AB 847 will meet the same fate as Measure R and get
trapped in a years-long meet and confer
o Ali Rubinfeld commented that ALADS is “incredibly threatened by the empowerment of this
Commission” by AB 847. She found two major issues in the meet and confer process.
o T. Carter commented that he would like the exact name and bar number to pursue a
complaint against County Counsel
e Deanna Brock is concerned about roadblocks to AB 847.
10C AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 3:52:24
e This item was taken out of order. Chair Johnson said the Commission Vacancy Interview Panel
has completed the screening of more than 50 applicants and identified 11 candidates to
interview. It’s likely the Commission will recommend a nominee to the Board before yearend.
e The other ad hoc committee chairs have waived their time.
10 SYBIL BRAND COMMISSION UPDATES 3:53:54
B Chair Johnson noted that, due to time constraints, the Sybil Brand Commission (SBC) will be
invited to make their presentation at a future meeting instead, perhaps in December.
PUBLIC COMMENT:
(SBC) Commissioner Eric Miller commented that he is “slightly disturbed” that the LASD got an
extended presentation on IRC, and the SBC wasn’t given a chance to respond. He added that,
despite positive comments from Commissioners Newhouse and Johnson about their recent
tours to MCJ, SBC has observed rats, cockroaches, tenting and other inhumane conditions
there. He noted the SBC goes in unannounced and unaccompanied as members of the public.
He said the positive comments from the Commission demonstrate that the Commission is not
reading SBC's reports.
11 NON-AGENDA PUBLIC COMMENTS: T Carter commented that he wants certain items to be 3:57:04
added on the Commission agenda.
12 UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS
The Chair did not take up this item, but mentioned the next meeting is on December 18, 2025.
13 ADJOURNMENT 3:58:01
The meeting adjourned at 1:07 p.m.

Meeting Minutes Los Angeles County Sheriff Civilian Oversight Commission Page 6 of 6


https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=13362
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=13603
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=13944
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=14034
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=14224
https://youtu.be/2y8Tw46De5w?t=14321

